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RES. NO. 1696
BY:
Council Members Freed, Reed, Linares and Perkins; also Council Members Foster, Quinn, Robinson and Sabini

TITLE:
Calling upon the appropriate committee of the Council of the City of New York to  conduct an oversight hearing and a cost assessment study in relation to the recent decision by the Museum of the City of New York to relocate to the Tweed Courthouse.

ANALYSIS & BACKGROUND:



According to its 2000 Annual Report, The Museum of the City of New York (“The Museum”), located in Manhattan at 1220 Fifth Avenue (at 103rd Street), is a private, not-for-profit educational corporation founded in 1923 for the purpose of presenting the history of New York City and its people as a significant learning resource.  Newton P. S. Merrill is the Chairman of The Museum’s Board of Trustees and Robert R. MacDonald is The Museum’s Executive Director.



The Museum’s 2000 Annual Report describes the mission of The Museum as follows:


“The Museum’s exhibition philosophy reflects its commitment to serve as a learning resource for New Yorkers and the nation through innovative interpretation of the City’s rich political, social, intellectual, artistic and cultural heritages.  As New York City’s major history museum, the Museum’s permanent and temporary exhibitions, in coordination with educational programming and publications, reflect the complexity of the history of New York City, the scope and depth of the Museum’s collections and the diversity of the Museum’s audience.


“Currently, the Museum hosts seven permanent exhibitions.  They reflect the Museum’s collection strengths and several themes in New York City history, including Broadway theatre, the role of New York Harbor in the City’s development, the rich history of fires and fire-fighting in early New York, and the life of New York’s children as seen through their playthings in New York Toy Stories.  Upon completion of its capital project, the Museum will present several new permanent exhibitions. New York, New York: City of Nations, a comprehensive linear timeline of New York City history, will serve as the core exhibition and intellectual anchor of the Museum’s permanent offerings.”


At its December 12, 2000 monthly meeting, The Museum’s Board of Trustees unanimously voted to relocate and, in January of 2001, the Mayor announced The Museum’s intention to relocate to the former New York County Courthouse (“the Tweed Courthouse”) located on Chambers Street in back of City Hall.  


The Tweed Courthouse was constructed between 1862 and 1878.  The City’s Board of Supervisors, under the leadership of William M. (Boss) Tweed, appropriated the then unparalleled sum of $13 million for the building’s construction.  The extraordinary costs associated with the construction of the Tweed Courthouse was one of the primary factors that led to an investigation and the eventual fall from power of Boss Tweed.  The building continued to function as a courthouse until it was replaced by a new one in 1926 and from that point until the onset of the current restoration, the Tweed Courthouse functioned as a city government office building.  


The Museum includes in its internet web site a selection entitled “Museum of the City of New York at the Tweed Courthouse”.  In this selection, The Museum describes its vision of its proposed new Tweed Courthouse location in this way.


“New York today is a tableau of the City’s past and its future.  The Museum of the City of New York at the Tweed will be a gateway through which New Yorkers and visitors will advance their understanding of the City and from which they may begin their exploration of the multifaceted metropolis.  This quality cultural attraction will also be a significant center of learning for family, youth, adult and scholarly audiences, as well as for the City’s civic and business leadership.”


Contrary to the attractive word picture painted above by The Museum, Res. No. 1696 speaks of the anticipated adverse impact on the East Harlem community of The Museum’s move from its home of over 75 years.  Res. No. 1696 characterizes The Museum as “a vital and integral part of East Harlem” and indicates that “its removal would create a large void in the community.”  The process by which The Museum decided to move from East Harlem is the subject of criticism in Res. No. 1696, which speaks of the failure of The Museum’s Board of Trustees to discuss the proposed relocation with community groups and local elected officials.  


Res. No. 1696 concludes by questioning the future use of The Museum’s East Harlem location, alluding to rumors in the community about the sale of air rights over the present building, and calling for the holding of an oversight hearing, and the preparation of a cost assessment study, on The Museum’s decision to relocate to the Tweed Courthouse.


On March 1, 2001, the New York Times reported (see copy of article appended to this report) that El Museo del Barrio, a center of Latin art and culture presently located at 104th Street and Fifth Avenue, had initiated discussions with the City’s Economic Development Corporation on relocating to the present site of The Museum of the City of New York. 


Also appended to this report is an article printed in the March 9, 2001 issue of the New York Times that discusses the issues presented in Res. No. 1696 at great length.
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